IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner/Appellant

V.

ANDREA SMITH,

Respondent/Appellee.

Case No. 96,974

**

**

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER/APPELLANT ON THE MERITS

ROBERT BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA A. TERENZIO Bureau Chief

DON M. ROGERS Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0656445 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL. 33401 (561) 688-7759

Counsel for Petitioner/Appellant <u>Case No. 96,974</u> State of Florida v. Andrea Smith

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 5
ARGUMENT 7
THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ERRED IN HOLDING THAT SECTION 775.082(8) FLORIDA STATUTES (1997) AUTHORIZES THE TRIAL COURT RATHER THAN THE STATE ATTORNEY TO DECIDE WHETHER TO PROCEED AGAINST A DEFENDANT AS A PRISON RELEASEE REOFFENDER IN A GIVEN CASE.
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 17

iv

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases Cited Page Number
STATE CASES
<u>Baker v. State</u> , 636 So. 2d 1342 (Fla. 1994)
City of Pompano Beach v. Capalbo, 445 So. 2d 468 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984) 10
<u>Ferguson v. State</u> , 377 So. 2d 709 (Fla. 1979)
<u>Fletcher v. Florida Public Co.</u> , 319 So. 2d 100 (Fla. 1st DCA 1975)
<u>Foley v. State ex rel. Gordon</u> , 50 So. 2d 179 (Fla. 1951)
Gulley v. Pierce, 625 So. 2d 45 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993)
<u>Holly v. Auld</u> , 450 So. 2d 217 (Fla. 1984)
Lincoln v. Florida Parole Commission, 643 So. 2d 668 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994) 10
<u>Martin County v. Edenfield</u> , 609 So. 2d 27 (Fla. 1979)
McKnight v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D439 (Fla. 3d DCA February 26, 1999) 4
<u>Smith v. Crawford</u> , 645 So. 2d 513 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994)
<u>Smith v. State</u> , 24 Fla. L. Weekly D2393 (Fla. 4th DCA October 20, 1999) 4
<u>State v. Ashley, 701 So. 2d 338 (Fla. 1997)</u>
<u>State v. Wise</u> , 24 Fla. L. Weekly D657 (Fla. 4th DCA March 10, 1999), <u>rev. pending</u> , No. 95,230 (Fla. 1999)

V

C:\Supreme Court\070600\96974ini.wpd

STATUTES

Section 775.082 Florida Statutes
OTHER AUTHORITIES
Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, CS/SB 2362
Victimology: An International Journal

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner/Appellant was the appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida.

Respondent/Appellee was the appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Palm Beach County, Florida.

In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Court, except that Petitioner/Appellant may also be referred to as the "prosecution" or the "State."

<u>i</u>

The following symbols will be used:

AB = Appellant's Initial Brief

R = Record on Appeal

T = Transcript

C:\Supreme Court\070600\96974ini.wpd

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On January 2, 1998 the State filed an information charging appellee with robbery, burglary of a dwelling and battery. (R 5) On January 15, 1998, the State of Florida filed its notice to seek maximum penalties under provisions of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Statute, § 775.082 Fla. Stat. (R 11) On June 4, 1998, Respondent/Appellee, Andrea Smith was found guilty of robbery and battery by a jury in the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida. (R 51-52)

Thereafter, on or about June 25, 1998, and again on July 23, 1998, Appellee filed a Motion to Preclude Sentencing Under Florida Statute 775.082(8)(a)1. (R 56-57. 65-66)

The State filed a response which requested "that this Honorable court … sentence the defendant in accordance with the PRR Statute." (R 69)

On July 23, 1998, Respondent/Appellee appeared with counsel before the Honorable Mary Lupo, Judge of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida. Respondent/Appellee's counsel argued that section 775.082(8) did not apply to Respondent/Appellee because of the exception contained in subsection 2.(d)1.c of the statute, to wit:

(d)1. It is the intent of the Legislature that offenders previously released from prison who meet the criteria in paragraph (a) be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in this subsection, unless any of the following circumstances exist:

c. The victim does not want the offender to receive the mandatory prison sentence and provides a written statement to that effect . . .

In support of his argument, Respondent/Appellee's counsel cited a letter from the victim -- Respondent/Appellee's one time girlfriend-- stating that "she did not want Mr. Smith to be sentenced under the prison re-offender statute and did not want him to receive a minimum mandatory sentence under the statute and she even went as far as to say that she did not even want him to go to prison." (T 168) The State, through its Assistant State Attorney Robert Gentile, argued that the statute gave the authority to the prosecutor -- not the court -- to determine who would be treated as a prison releasee reoffender (T 174-176). The trial judge then stated:

Unfortunately, I agree with Mr. Gentile's interpretation of this statute. I believe it's compulsory for me to sentence you under Florida Statute 775.082 as a prison releasee re-offender punishment person. And so pursuant to that statute, I am sentencing you to fifteen years in prison as a mandatory minimum with credit for time served...(T 182)

However, the judge also noted:

Now, what I will do for purposes of appeal, should be Mr. Suskauer prevail on the appeal, I will tell you what my sentence would be, not that it's binding, but what my sentence would be, had you not been a prison releasee re-offender punishment person, I would have sentenced you to forty state prison months with credit for the time served.(T 183)

Respondent/Appellee was then sentenced to 15 years in the Florida Department

of Corrections...

Smith timely appealed to the Fourth District Court of Appeal. After due deliberation, the Fourth District issued a written opinion, a copy of which is attached hereto as "Appendix A". The Fourth District applied their earlier decision in <u>State v. Wise</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D657 (Fla. 4th DCA March 10, 1999), rev. pending, No. 95,230 (Fla. 1999), holding "that the trial judge erred in concluding that she had no discretion to sentence Smith outside of the provisions of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act." <u>Smith v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D2393 (Fla. 4th DCA October 20, 1999). In so doing, the Fourth District acknowledged that its decision conflicts with the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in <u>McKnight v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D439 (Fla. 3d DCA, February 26, 1999), rev. granted, No. 95,154 (Fla. August 19, 1999). 24 Fla. L. Weekly D2393 n.1.

This appeal follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This is a case dealing with the statutory construction of Ch. 97-239 Laws of Florida, the "Prison Releasees Reoffender Punishment Act" which is now part of section 775.082 Florida Statutes (1997). The statute provides, *inter alia*:

(d) 1. It is the intent of the Legislature that offenders previously released from prison who meet the criteria in paragraph (a) be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in this subsection, unless any of the following circumstances exist:

* * *

c. The victim does not want the offender to receive the mandatory prison sentence and provides a written statement to that effect . . .

The issue before this Court is whether the exception enumerated in subsection (d)1.c is addressed to the discretion of the trial court or the state attorney. It is the court's duty to glean the legislative intent from a consideration of the act as a whole. A primary principle of statutory construction is that a court must construe a statute in conjunction with other statutes pertaining to the same subject matter. Courts may ascertain the intent of the legislature in enacting a statute by considering other statutes enacted in the same legislative session. A statute should not be interpreted so as to lead to an absurd result.

The Florida Senate staff analysis clearly states the intent of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Punishment Act is to restrict plea bargaining by the state attorney, and the

discretion provided in the statute is to be exercised by the state attorney. The language of section 775.082(8) Florida Statutes (1997) as well as the placement of subsection (d)1.c clearly demonstrates the subsection is merely one of the factors which a state attorney may consider when deciding whether to prosecute a particular defendant as a "prison releasee reoffender." Any other result would be absurd, since there is no way for a trial court to test the reliability of such a statement, and the victim -- rather than the State -- would have complete control over the prosecution of a criminal action.

C:\Supreme Court\070600\96974ini.wpd 6

ARGUMENT

THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ERRED IN HOLDING THAT SECTION 775.082(8) FLORIDA STATUTES (1997) AUTHORIZES THE TRIAL COURT RATHER THAN THE STATE ATTORNEY TO DECIDE WHETHER TO PROCEED AGAINST A DEFENDANT AS A PRISON RELEASEE REOFFENDER IN A GIVEN CASE.

This is a case of first impression dealing with the statutory construction of Ch. 97-239 Laws of Florida, the "Prison Releasee Reoffender Punishment Act" which became law without the Governor's approval on May 30, 1997 and was incorporated into section 775.082 Florida Statutes (1997). The case presents an important question, in that it will decide whether a certain statutory exception is meant to be exercised by the trial court or the state attorney. There is a conflict in the case law from the various district courts of appeal on the subject.

The statute defines a "prison releasee reoffender" as any defendant who commits or attempts to commit, an enumerated list of crimes including "robbery" "within 3 years of being released from a state correctional facility operated by the Department of Corrections or a private vendor." §775.082(8)(a)1q Florida Statutes (1997). The statute then provides:

2. If the state attorney determines that a defendant is a prison releasee reoffender as defined in subparagraph 1, the state attorney may seek to have the court sentence the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender. Upon proof from the state

attorney that establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that a defendant is a prison releasee reoffender as defined in this section, such defendant is not eligible for sentencing under the sentencing guidelines and must be sentenced as follows:

* * *

b. for a felony of the second degree, by a term of imprisonment of 15 years . . .

Although the statute provides that "nothing in the subsection shall prevent a court from imposing a greater sentence of incarceration as authorized by law, it further provides:

(b) A person sentenced under paragraph (a) shall be released only by expiration of sentence and shall not be eligible for parole, control release, or any form of early release. Any person sentenced under paragraph (a) must serve 100 percent of the court-imposed sentence.

The statute then includes the following explanatory language, and provides for certain exceptions:

- (d) 1. It is the intent of the Legislature that offenders previously released from prison who meet the criteria in paragraph (a) be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in this subsection, unless any of the following circumstances exist:
- a. The prosecuting attorney does not have sufficient evidence to prove the highest charge available;

- b. The testimony of a material witness cannot be obtained;
- c. The victim does not want the offender to receive the mandatory prison sentence and provides a written statement to that effect; or
- d. Other extenuating circumstances exist which preclude the just prosecution of the offender.

Finally, the statute places the following burden on the state attorney and the Florida Prosecuting Attorneys Association, Inc.:

2. For every case in which the offender meets the criteria in paragraph (a) and does not receive the mandatory minimum prison sentence, the state attorney must explain the sentencing deviation in writing and place such explanation in the case file maintained by the state attorney. On a quarterly basis, each state attorney shall submit copies of deviation memoranda regarding offenses committed on or after the effective date of this subsection, to the President of the Florida Prosecuting Attorneys Association, Inc. The association must maintain such information, and make such information available to the public on request, for at least a 10-year period.

The sole issue before this Court is whether the exception enumerated in subsection (d)1.c is addressed to the discretion of the trial court or the state attorney.

It is a fundamental rule of statutory construction that in construing a statute, the court must first attempt to ascertain the legislative intent from the language of the statute itself. See Baker v. State, 636 So. 2d 1342 (Fla. 1994). If the language of the statute is clear, the court must apply the statute as it was intended and may not supply its own

interpretation. See Holly v. Auld, 450 So. 2d 217 (Fla. 1984). Where, however, the phraseology of an act is ambiguous or is susceptible of more than one interpretation, it is the court's duty to glean the legislative intent from a consideration of the act as a whole, "the evil to be corrected, the language of the act, including its title, the history of its enactment, and the state of the law already in existence bearing on the subject." Foley v. State ex rel. Gordon, 50 So. 2d 179, 184 (Fla. 1951).

A primary principle of statutory construction is that a court must construe a statute in conjunction with other statutes pertaining to the same subject matter. Ferguson v. State, 377 So. 2d 709 (Fla. 1979); Smith v. Crawford, 645 So. 2d 513 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994). It has also been held that courts may ascertain the intent of the legislature in enacting a statute by considering other statutes enacted in the same legislative session. Lincoln v. Florida Parole Commission, 643 So. 2d 668 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994); Gulley v. Pierce, 625 So. 2d 45 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993).

Finally, it is well settled that remedial statutes must be construed liberally to advance the intended remedy. Martin County v. Edenfield, 609 So. 2d 27 (Fla. 1979). If a literal interpretation of a statute leads to an absurd result, the strict letter of the law should yield to the obvious intent of the legislature. City of Pompano Beach v. Capalbo, 445 So. 2d 468, 471 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984).

Petitioner/Appellant respectfully submits that the language of section 775.082(8)

Florida Statutes (1997) as well as the placement of subsection (d)1.c clearly demonstrates the subsection is merely one of the factors which a state attorney may consider when deciding whether to prosecute a particular defendant as a "prison releasee reoffender." Obviously, a trial judge would have no knowledge of whether or not the prosecuting attorney had sufficient evidence to prove the highest charge available, nor would the court know if a material witness could not be obtained -- which are the factors enumerated by the statute in subsections (d)1.a and (d)1.b. Such knowledge would be available only to the state attorney, and it is the state attorney who, in paragraph 2, is charged not only with the responsibility of writing a memorandum explaining the "sentencing deviation," and maintaining it -- in the *state attorney* 's case file -- but, in addition, forwarding a copy to the Florida Prosecuting Attorneys Association -- not the Florida Supreme Court.

An examination of paragraph 2 raises a further problem if one assumes subsection (d)1.c does not follow the other subsection (d) exceptions to the statute and is meant to provide discretion to the trial court rather than the state attorney: the state attorney, not the trial court, is directed to prepare the memorandum explaining the sentencing deviation in *every* case, yet if the Fourth District Court's position prevails at bar, it is the trial court which will exercise the discretion. Thus, the state attorney would be placed in the untenable position of writing a memorandum based on pure speculation: in effect guessing whether the victim's statement was truthful and reliable, and what effect -- if any

-- the statement had on the trial judge. It is entirely possible that the state attorney might not have prior knowledge of a written statement by the victim; and it is certain the state attorney would have no knowledge of the impact of such a statement on the trial judge. Indeed, depending on the circumstances under which it was written, the prosecutor might find such a statement worthless.

The Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement for CS/SB 2362, the Senate Bill which created the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act, supports the conclusion that the terms of the act are directed toward the prosecutor rather than the trial court. Paragraph III of the analysis specifically provides "The CS [Committee Substitute] further provides that, if a state attorney determines that a defendant is a prison releasee reoffender, the state attorney may seek to have the court sentence the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender." The analysis goes on to point out that, "The state attorney is not required to pursue sentencing the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender. Even if the defendant meets the criteria for a prison releasee reoffender, the state attorney can seek to have the defendant sentenced under the sentencing guidelines or, if he meets relevant criteria, habitualized as an habitual felony offender, habitual violent felony offender, or violent career criminal." Significantly, the analysis sets forth the era which the state attorney must use in making that judgment, using the identical language of the statute:

The CS provides legislature intent to prohibit plea bargaining in prison releasee reoffender cases, unless: there is insufficient evidence; a material witness's testimony cannot be obtained; the victim provides a written objection to such sentencing; or there are other extenuating circumstances precluding prosecution.

Finally, Petitioner/Appellant submits that in construing section 775.082 and particularly subsection (8)(d)1.c this Court must be sensitive to the well established law expressed in decisions such as <u>City of Pompano Beach</u>, <u>supra</u>., and the realities of any victim's pre-trial written statement which requests mercy for a defendant.

It is an ancient and well settled principle of common law that a criminal trespass is an offense against the State rather than an individual victim. See Fletcher v. Florida Pub. Co., 319 So. 2d 100, 104 (Fla. 1st DCA 1975). That principle remains in effect in Florida as do all other principles of the common law. See State v. Ashley, 701 So. 2d 338, 341 (Fla. 1997). If this Court were to hold that subsection (8)(d)1.c were anything other than merely one of the factor which a state attorney could consider before prosecuting a defendant as a prison releasee reoffender, two absurd conclusions would result:

First, in view of the Confrontation Clause of the United States Constitution, there would be no way -- other than by asking the victim and hearing his or her answer in open court -- for a trial court to test genuineness of the written request or determine whether the victim was under duress when he or she wrote it. In short, if one were to assume that

subsection (8)(d)1.c were meant to provide discretion to the trial court without the intervention of the state attorney, then a written statement, in and of itself, would be an absolute bar to prosecution under section 775.082. Clearly, such a result would be absurd.

Secondly, and perhaps more importantly, if one were to interpret subsection (8)(d)1.c as an exception directed to the trial court's discretion, for the first time in the history of the common law the victim would be in exclusive control of a criminal prosecution. Given our current knowledge of the dynamics in many victim-perpetrator relationships -- particularly in domestic violence cases -- Petitioner/Appellant submits it would be even more absurd to conclude the Legislature intended to hand over to the victim the key to prosecution without giving the state attorney overriding authority.¹

The only reasonable conclusion, given the language and structure of section 775.082 Florida Statutes (1997) is that the exceptions enumerated in (8)(d)1.a, b, c, and d, are exceptions which may be exercised at the discretion of the state attorney. The learned trial judge was correct when she relied on subsection (8)(d)1.c to hold that Respondent/Appellee had to be sentenced to the mandatory minimum sentence.

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal should be reversed and the

¹See, for example: Walker, Lenore, *Battered Women and Learned Helplessness*, Victimology: An International Journal, Vol. 2, No. 3-4, pages 525-534 (1997-98).

District Court must be directed to affirm the sentence imposed.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE based on the foregoing arguments and authorities cited herein, Petitioner/Appellant prays for an order of this Court to reversing the Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision with directions that the district court affirm the sentence imposed by the trial court.