IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
Petitioner,)	
VS.)	Case No. 96,974
ANDREA SMITH,)	
Respondent)	
)	

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

On Review from the Fourth District Court of Appeal

MARK WILENSKY
Attorney for Respondent
DUBINER & WILENSKY, P.A.
Northbridge Centre, Suite 325
515 North Flagler Drive
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401-4349
(561) 655-0150
Florida Bar No. 290221

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, the State, was the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit

Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Palm Beach County, and the appellant

in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent was the defendant and the appellee

in the courts below. In the brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this

Honorable Court.

A copy of the decision below is attached to Appellant's Initial Brief.

In accordance with the Florida Supreme Court Administrative Order, issued on

July 13, 1998, and modeled after Rule 28-2(d), Rules of the United States Court of

Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, counsel for Respondent hereby certifies that the instant

brief has been prepared with 14 point Times New Roman type, a font that is spaced

proportionately.

The following symbols will be used:

R = Record on Appeal

T = Transcript

viii

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts the State's statement of the case and facts, with the following additions:

The State's Notice of Defendant's Qualification as a Prison Releasee Reoffender, etc., set forth that Respondent was released on or about February 16, 1996 (R 12).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I.

The Prison Releasee Reoffender Act allows the sentencing court to sentence under the guidelines, and without imposing the enhanced sentences provided in the Act, where the victim provides a statement that she does not wish the enhanced sentence. The statute plainly sets forth the victim input exception without reference to the prosecutor. The intent of the Legislature is clear from the statutory language. However, if there is any ambiguity it must be construed in favor of Respondent. The State's interpretation of the statute attempts to read into it things which the Legislature neither stated nor intended.

II.

Alternative grounds for this Court to affirm the decision below are provided by constitutional defects in the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act. These defects were all raised in the Fourth District. Although not raised in the trial court, the defects are fundamental constitutional errors.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CORRECTLY HELD THAT SECTION 775.082(8), <u>FLA.STAT.</u> (1997), DOES NOT REQUIRE THE TRIAL COURT TO IMPOSE AN ENHANCED PRISON RELEASE REOFFENDER SENTENCE WHERE THE VICTIM DOES NOT WANT IT.

The Fourth District correctly concluded from an analysis of the statute conducted under the correct standards that the victim exception may be applied by the sentencing court, without the prosecutor's initiation, where the victim provides a statement that she does not want an enhanced sentence imposed.

As stated by the Fourth District in its opinion in <u>State v. Wise</u>, 744 So.2d 1035 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999), "The function of the state attorney is to prosecute and upon conviction seek an appropriate penalty or sentence. It is the function of the trial court to determine the penalty or sentence to be imposed. [Citations omitted.] The trial court is not required to accept the victim's written statement in mitigation. It is left to the trial court in its sound discretion whether or not to accept the victim's written statement in mitigation or reject it and sentence the defendant under subsection (8)(a)2." <u>Id.</u> The Second District is in accord. <u>State v. Cotton</u>, 728 So.2d 251 (Fla. 2d DCA 1998).

Nonetheless, the State still contends, as it did below, that the provision of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act allowing an exception where the victim states that she

does not wish the defendant to be sentenced under the Act vests the sole authority for its application in the state attorney, to the exclusion of the sentencing court. The statute's plain terms are otherwise.

The terms of the Act must be taken at face value. See, Baker v. State, 636 So.2d 1342 (Fla. 1994) and Holly v. Auld, 450 So.2d 217 (Fla. 1984). It must be strictly construed. Section 775.021(1), Fla. Stat. (1997); Dunn v. United States, 442 U. S. 100, 99 S. Ct. 2190, 60 L. Ed. 2d 743 (1979); Bifulco v. United States, 447 U. S. 381, 100 S. Ct. 2247, 65 L. Ed. 2d 205 (1980); Trotter v. State, 576 So.2d 691 (Fla. 1990). If there is any ambiguity it must be resolved in favor of the accused. Section 775.021(1); State v. Wershow, 343 So.2d 605 (Fla. 1977); Earnest v. State, 351 So.2d 957 (Fla. 1977); Gilbert v. State, 680 So.2d 1132 (Fla. 3d DCA 1966). This rule's application to penalties is well established in Florida law. A.C.L.RR. Co. v. State, 73 Fla. 609, 74 So. 595 (1917); City of Leesburg v. Ware, 113 Fla. 760, 153 So. 87 (1934); Rogers v. Cunningham, 117 Fla. 760, 158 So. 430 (1934); Watson v. Stone, 4 So.2d 700 (Fla. 1941). See also, Logan v. State, 666 So.2d 260 (Fla. 4th DCA 1996).

The statute plainly states that it is the intent of the legislature that previously released offenders be sentenced under the statute <u>unless</u> any one of four circumstances, listed in the alternative, exist. Only the first circumstance, (d)1.a., not the one at issue here, mentions the prosecutor. The third, (d)1.c., is the exception where the <u>victim</u> does

not want the offender to receive the mandatory sentence under the Act. The Legislature mentioned the prosecutor where it intended to, and did not mention him where it did not intend to. Section (d)1.c. explicitly gives the initiative to the victim, not the prosecutor. Furthermore, (d)1. grants the authority to the court and not the prosecutor to apply the exception: (d)1. states that the offender "be punished" as provided. It is the court, not the prosecutor, who imposes the punishment. The statute does not give the prosecutor any right to interfere with a sentencing which otherwise conforms to the Act, including the exceptions.

The victim exception therefore is not merely one of the factors which a state attorney may consider when deciding whether to prosecute as a releasee reoffender. The prosecutor's decision occurs at an earlier stage, while the exceptions come into play <u>after</u> it has been made: subsection (a)2. states that the state attorney <u>may seek</u> to have the court sentence the offender as a releasee reoffender if he determines that the defendant qualifies under (a)1. Even <u>after</u> the state attorney establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that the defendant qualifies, the court may still decline to sentence under the statute if the victim does not want it.

The State's procedural gloss on the statute is strained at best. The State presumes that only the state attorney has the authority because only the state attorney would have knowledge of the sufficiency of the evidence or whether a material witness could be

obtained. There is no reason, however, that the court could not obtain this information, from the State or from the defense, at sentencing or before. Even if (d)1.a. and (d)1.b. did give authority to the prosecutor, that does not mean that (d)1.c. does as well. Section (d)1.c., by its own terms, is applicable by the court. Any ambiguity must be resolved in favor of Respondent.

Similarly, just because the state attorney is directed in (d)2. to prepare a memorandum does not mean that he must have final authority. The state attorney would not be required to speculate, as contended (pp. 11-12), but would only have to memorialize what was presented to the court. The memorandum, as stated in the subsection, is for statistical purposes and is not a part of the prosecution.

The State argues that the state attorney might not have prior knowledge of the written statement of the victim. Indeed, the statue does not require him to, any more than the law requires him to have notice of any other evidence to be presented by the defense at sentencing. Sentencing is required only to be held in open court, <u>Fla. R. Crim. P.</u> 3.700(b), with the implicit rights of attendance and cross examination by both sides. The Act does not violate the State's right to confrontation. Indeed, here the prosecutor did have knowledge of the victim's position, as it was presented at the hearing (T 168).

The legislative staff analysis cited by the State need not be considered by this Court because the Act's own plain language is clear. In any event, the analysis says

nothing to contradict the statute's grant to the trial judge of discretion to apply the victim exception. The statement in paragraph III that the state attorney may seek a reoffender sentence authorizes the prosecutor to seek the enhanced sentence without in any way questioning the discretion granted to the judge to impose it or not where the exception applies. There is no reason that the prosecutor cannot consider the victim's wishes in his own decision to seek or not seek an enhanced sentenced, and the judge consider them again in his decision. The statement in paragraph III about intent to prohibit plea bargaining is irrelevant because there was no plea bargain here. The judge telling the defendant what sentence he will receive if he pleads is not plea bargaining. State v. Warner, 721 So.2d 767 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998). The Act will apply to many convictions obtained at trial, not just plea bargains.

The State's argument that a criminal offense is one against the State and not against the individual victim flies in the face of the plain intent of the Legislature, which is to increase the punishment under certain circumstances where the offense against the State has already been vindicated by a conviction bearing a legislated penalty. The Legislature explicitly deferred to the individual victim when it provided for the victim to state that she was satisfied with the punishment previously set by the legislature. It is curious that in this time of increasing legislated victim rights the State would contend that under the present statute the victim has no rights, even though provision is explicitly

made for victim input. The Act does not give exclusive victim control over a criminal prosecution any more than does any other victim's rights law. It simply follows the trend toward greater victim input in sentencing.

The State's final invocation of "current knowledge of the dynamics in many victim-perpetrator relationships" has roamed far afield of the Record on Appeal and the legislative intent explicitly stated in the Act. This "knowledge" is simply not a part of the statute and cannot be considered by this Court as it interprets the statute. For this Court to reverse the decision of the Fourth District would be a violation not only of the clear terms of the statute itself; but, also of Respondent's right to due process under the Florida and United States constitutions.

ARGUMENT

POINT II

ALTERNATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL GROUNDS EXIST FOR THIS COURT TO AFFIRM THE DECISION BELOW.

The following grounds and arguments were raised in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Although rejected in that form, Respondent raises these arguments because if the Court acquires jurisdiction, it has authority to dispose of all contested issues. See, Dania Jai-Alai Palace, Inc. v. Sykes, 450 So.2d 1114 (Fla. 1984);Bould v. Touchette, 349 So.2d 1181 (Fla. 1977); D'Agostino v. State, 310 So.2d 12 (Fla. 1975). These grounds and arguments provide grounds for this Court to affirm the Fourth District's decision as "right for the wrong reason" even if this Court reverses on Point I. See, State v. Stephens, 586 So.2d 1073, 1075 (Fla 5th DCA 1991). Although not raised in the trial court, these grounds are fundamental constitutional grounds which must be addressed even through not presented to the trial court. See, Trushin v. State, 425 So.2d 1126, 1130 (Fla. 1983).

1. The Act is not applicable to Respondent.

As discussed above in Point I of this brief, the Act must be strictly construed, with any ambiguities in favor of the accused. According to the Act's "whereas" clause, it was passed because "recent court decisions have mandated the early release of violent felony

offenders, . . . " The Court decision the Legislature is referring to is Lynce v. Mathis, 117 S.Ct. 891, 137 L.Ed.2d 63 (1997). Lynce was decided February 19, 1997. In that highly publicized (and criticized) decision, the Supreme Court held that a 1992 statute canceling release credits violated the Ex Post Facto clause. It resulted in the subsequent "early release" of a number of inmates based on the additional gain time. Few, if any, of these inmates whose sentence was affected by the Lynce decision could have been released prior to May 30, 1997, as the mandate issued some time later, and the case had to be implemented by the state courts and Department of Corrections. Certainly, none of the inmates who gained "early release" due to Lynce were released three years before the Lynce decision, which is the group of inmates the State seeks to apply the Act to. It would thus be totally inconsistent with the legislative intent to hold the Act applicable to the category of inmates released three years prior to the Act's effective date.

Next, the statute simply states it applies where any of certain listed felonies are committed or attempted "within 3 years of being released from a state correctional facility operated by the Department of Corrections or a private vendor." Section 775.082(8)(R), Fla. Stat. (1997). The Act does not state that it applies, for instance, where an offender *has been* released in the last three years, or three years *prior* to the effective date of the act. Again, the language of the Act is consistent with its application to those cases in

¹Respondent was released February 16, 1999 (R 11).

which the defendant is released subsequent to the effective date.

More telling is that the legislation also implemented a "Release Orientation Program," requiring notification of this Act to inmates who were being released. While failure to notify is no defense under the Act, by its very terms the program does not take effect until May 30, 1997. The provision states:

944.705 Release orientation program.

- (6)(A) The department shall notify every inmate, in no less than 18-point type in the inmate's release documents, that the inmate may be sentenced pursuant to section 775.082(8) if the inmate commits any felony offense described in section 775.082(8) within three years after the inmate's release. This notice must be prefaced by the word "warning" in boldfaced type.
- (B) Nothing in this section precludes the sentencing of a person pursuant to section 775.082(8), nor shall evidence that the Department failed to provide this notice prohibit a person from being sentenced pursuant to section 775.082(8). The State shall not be required to demonstrate that a person received any notice from the department in order for the court to impose a sentence pursuant to section 775.082(8).

This program does not require giving notice to anyone released prior to May 30, 1997, which is a strong indication the Act does not apply to those released prior to that date.

There is no language in the Act which explicitly requires its application to those released from custody prior to its effective date; however, there is language and legislative intent indicating it applies only to those released after the date. At the very least, "the language is susceptible of differing constructions," and thus "it shall be

construed most favorably to the accused." Section 775.021(1), <u>Fla. Stat.</u> (1997). Such a construction requires this Court to declare the Act does not apply to those alleged offenders, such as Respondent, released prior to May 30, 1997.

2. The Act unlawfully restricts the right to plea bargain

The Act restricts the ability of the parties to plea bargain in providing only limited reasons for a departure from a maximum sentence provided for in releasee reoffender cases. The Act provides:

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